
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health,  
Councillor Carl Maynard 
 
WEDNESDAY, 26 JUNE 2019 AT 10.00 AM  
 
COMMITTEE ROOM - COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
AGENDA 
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Member on 24 May 2019  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosure of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct. 

 
3   Urgent items   

Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda. 

 
4   Update on the progress of the 2018/19 Adult Social Care and Health savings  (Pages 5 

- 10) 
 

5   Any urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 18 June 2019 
 
Contact Hannah Matthews, Democratic Services Officer, 01273 335 138,  
 
Email: hannah.matthews@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH 
 
DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health, Councillor Carl 
Maynard, on 24 May 2019 at County Hall, Lewes  
 

 
Councillors Angharad Davies and John Ungar spoke on item 4 (see minute 3) 
 
 
 
1 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD MEMBER ON 8 JANUARY 2019  
 
1.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 8 
January 2019.  
 
 
2 REPORTS  
 
2.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 
 
 
3 CONSULTATION ON ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH SAVINGS PROPOSALS 
FOR WORKING AGE ADULTS AND SUBSIDY OF MEALS IN THE COMMUNITY  
 
3.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Adult Social Care and Health.   
 
DECISIONS  
 
3.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to agree that the County Council consults for a 10 week 
period on:  
 (1) a proposal to withdraw the subsidy from the meals in the community service, and  
 (2) a proposed change in approach to supporting Working Age Adults.  
 
Reasons  
 
3.3  The feedback received through the consultation process will be presented alongside an 
Equalities Impact Assessment, to inform Member decisions about the savings proposals.   The 
proposed consultation will focus on understanding the strategic challenges we face in 
addressing the comparatively high spend in this area, ensuring that if a decision is made to 
proceed with the savings this work is undertaken in an effective way.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report to: Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health 

Date of meeting: 26 June 2019 

By: Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

Title: Update on the progress of the 2018/19 Adult Social Care and Health 
savings  

Purpose: To update the Lead Member on the progress of 2018/19 savings in 
relation to Adult Social Care and Health   

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Lead Member is recommended to consider and comment on the progress of the 
savings plans agreed by Cabinet from the Adult Social Care budget. 

 

1. Background 

1.1.   The Adult Social Care’s Reconciling Policy, Performance and Resources (RPPR) savings 
requirements for 2018/19 totalled £9.6m, which were agreed by Cabinet on 26th June 2018.   

1.2. Cabinet further agreed at their meeting on 26th June 2018 that the Lead Member for Adult 
Social Care and Health will receive six-monthly updates on progress with the savings plans.  This 
is the second of these updates, with the first being considered by the Lead Member on 27 
November 2018. 

2. Background 

2.1. The Adult Social Care and Health savings proposals agreed at Cabinet on 26th June 2018 
were: 

Savings area Savings to be delivered (£) 

Older People’s Commissioned Day Services 188,000 

Older People’s Directly Provided Services 1,086,000 

Learning Disability Directly Provided Services 1,170,000 

Supporting People – Community Based Housing Support Services 2,500,000 

Supporting People – Accommodation Based Housing Support Services 800,000 

Assessment and Care Management Staff 1,958,000 

Strategy and Commissioning Staff 590,000 

Affinity Trust Service 360,000 

Stroke Recovery Service 80,000 

Discretionary East Sussex Support Scheme 390,000 

HIV Support Service 48,000 

Carers Services 422,000 

Total 9,592,000 

2.2 Cabinet also agreed to use the non-recurrent additional adult social care grant announced 
in June 2018 of £1.6m to mitigate the proposed savings by allocating £404k to reduce the savings 
target for Supporting People – Accommodation Based Housing Support Services from £800k to 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 

£396k, and allocating £1.2m to Supporting People – Community Based Housing Support Services 
to reduce the savings target from £2.5m to £1.3m. 

2.3 The grant of £1.6m which was used to partially mitigate the savings to Supporting People 
services, as it is non-recurrent, has created a shortfall in funding in 2019/20 which will need to be 
mitigated in this year’s Adult Social Care budget. 
 

3.       Progress of savings plan  

3.1 All of the savings proposals have been progressed since the decisions made at Cabinet on 
26 June 2018, and the savings are projected to be delivered in 2019/20 as per the original 
proposals.   
 

Summary of impacts of overall programme 

3.2 Delivery of savings: 

 A total of £4.8m savings were achieved in 2018/19. 

 The remaining £6m savings are on target to be achieved in 2019/20 once the full year 
effect has been realised. 

 The additional adult social care grant received in 2018 of £1.6m creates a pressure in 
2019/20. 

 

3.3 Impacts on staffing: 

 A total of 131 staff have taken redundancy, of which 129 were voluntary. 

 7 staff have been redeployed. 

 75 staff in Learning Disability Services have had changes to their contracts, which may 
include reductions of 7 hours per week; all requests made by staff to maintain 37 hour 
working weeks by incorporating additional hours at other establishments have been 
accommodated. 

 

3.4 Impacts on services: 

 Two older people’s day services commissioned from the Sussex Community Development 
Association have been closed and alternative provision found for clients as required. 

 The older people’s day service in Lewes previously commissioned from the Sussex 
Community Development Association is now being delivered by the Older People’s Directly 
Provided Service with no impact on clients. 

 Firwood House intermediate care beds have closed and these services have transferred to 
Milton Grange, with a total reduction of 8 mental health intermediate care beds which has 
allowed ten mental health and 17 generic intermediate care beds to remain open. 

 Warwick House Day Service has closed and clients who wished, have transferred to Milton 
Grange Day Service in Eastbourne or to the Phoenix Centre in Lewes, as per their 
preference. 

 Learning Disability Directly Provided Day Services have all reduced their opening hours by 
one day per week. 

 Learning Disability community support service has been reduced by 20%. 

 A total of 19 beds have been lost across all the Supporting People accommodation-based 
services.  

Page 6



 

 

 Supporting People community based services have been reduced and a quota system has 
been agreed across district and borough councils, adult social care and children’s services.  
The usage of the quota is being monitored to ensure it supports the areas of greatest need. 

 The small home managed by Affinity Trust has been closed and the clients and staff have 
been successfully moved to an alternative home managed by Affinity Trust. 

 The Stroke Recovery Service has been reduced in line with the decisions made by Cabinet 
and the service is now commissioned through the NHS. 

 The HIV Support Service has been closed, with the very small number of active clients 
supported into wider services. 

 The Discretionary East Sussex Support Scheme has been reduced and the administration 
moved into Health and Social Care Connect to reduce the cost of running the service; the 
remaining funds have been allocated to district and borough Councils to fund Rent in 
Advance Payments. 

 

4.  Detailed update on progress for each proposal 
 

Older People’s Commissioned Day Services 

4.1. The Charter Centre in Bexhill closed on 31st October 2018 with all clients receiving a review 
of their needs.  New day service placements have been found for all clients.  

4.2 The Isabel Blackman Centre in Hastings closed on Friday 29th March 2019. No sustainable 
alternative proposal has been received from the incumbent provider.  The clients currently 
accessing services at the centre have started to receive reviews of their needs and their eligible 
needs will be re-provided from alternative providers. 

4.3    The Phoenix Centre was subject to a procurement process, as agreed by Cabinet; however, 
there were no bids received which met the requirements of the specification and it was therefore 
agreed by the Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health for East Sussex County Council to 
assume responsibility for delivering the day service at the Phoenix Centre within the Older 
People’s Directly Provided Service.   
 

Older People’s Directly Provided Services 

4.4  Firwood House intermediate care beds have now closed and transferred to Milton Grange.  
The number of mental health intermediate care beds has reduced from 18 to 10, with a further 17 
generic intermediate care beds provided. 

4.5 Warwick House Day Centre has now closed and clients have transferred to Milton Grange 
or the Phoenix Centre.   

4.6 Staffing structures have been revised to create a new, consolidated service, with 38 posts 
made redundant, 36 of which were voluntary, and two which were compulsory. 

4.7 The service changes are forecast to deliver £1.086m savings in 2019/20; the project was 
formally closed on 20 November 2018 as all activities have been completed. 

 

Learning Disability Directly Provided Services  

 
4.5    Individual reviews have been completed for all clients whose services will be reduced, and 
support plans have been adjusted accordingly. The reduction or cessation of directly provided 
services has been agreed with all clients and families, and alternative support arranged where 
necessary.   

Page 7



 

 

4.6 The overall staffing complement of Learning Disability Services has reduced by 31.3 FTE 
posts. 19 staff have chosen to take voluntary redundancy.   In addition, all 75 staff in day services 
who currently have full time contracts face a 20% reduction in their contracted hours.   
 

Supporting People:  Community Based Services  

4.7 Plans have been developed and agreed with the providers of Homeworks and STEPS to 
manage the transition to reduced services for working age adults and the removal of the Navigator 
service for older people.  It was agreed at Cabinet to partially mitigate the original savings 
proposals through the deployment of the additional Adult Social Care grant of £1.6m, which was 
announced in March 2018. 

4.8 The contract for working age adults community based housing support has been extended 
to September 2019 and has provision to be extended further to November 2020 to allow alignment 
with the older peoples community based housing support service.  A referrals quota system has 
been agreed between district and borough councils, adult social care and children’s services; the 
use of the quotas is monitored to ensure this is focused on the areas of greatest need and impact. 

4.9 The community based housing support services for older people has ceased. The 
Navigator service which will ensure that the savings made will not affect the number of people who 
will be able to receive housing support; it has been further agreed with providers to lower the age 
of eligibility from 65 to 60. 
 
 
Supporting People:  Accommodation Based Services 

4.10  Refuges:  a successful bid application was submitted to the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government Fund for Domestic Abuse services which attracted £124k 
funding in 2018/19 and £233k in 2019/20. This has enabled all 47 refuge units to be secured. 

4.11  Young People:  7 beds were lost in Eastbourne. 

4.12  Homelessness:  the reduction in adult social care funding has meant a loss of 12 beds out 
of 41 for this area of housing support. 

4.13 Young Mums:  the reduction in funding has been mitigated through alternative funding 
sources and has not affected service provision. 

4.14 Mental Health and Homeless:  the service has been reduced in line with the reduction in 
funding from January 2019. 
 

Assessment and Care Management Staff 

4.15 No deterioration in performance has been noted to date as a result of the staffing changes.  
A number of workstreams are being progressed to mitigate pressures on staff by improving access 
to online assessments; reviewing the role of Health and Social Care Connect and Occupational 
Therapy Clinics; and maximising the efficient use of ESCC estate. 

Strategy and Commissioning Staff 

4.16 Nine staff have taken voluntary redundancy and the savings target is forecast to be realised 
in 2019/20.  Staffing structures and workloads continue to be reviewed to ensure resources are 
targeted on areas of priority. 

Affinity Trust Service 

4.17 The savings target is projected to be achieved following the successful transfer of clients 
and staff from the home together to an alternative home managed by Affinity.  

Stroke Recovery Service 

4.18 The service reduction took effect from 1st November and will deliver the savings target in 
full.  The project was formally closed on 5th November 2018.  Since the service changes were 
made, referral levels have been maintained.  

Page 8



 

 

Discretionary East Sussex Support Scheme 

4.19 Two posts were deleted in the team with the staff members requesting voluntary 
redundancy. 

4.20 The full savings target is projected to be realised from 2019/20.  
 
4.21 The remaining budget of £110k has been allocated across the five Districts and Boroughs 
to fund Rent in Advance Payments. 
 

HIV Support Service 

4.22 The revenue savings target of £48k has been achieved, and the project was formally closed 
on 9 October 2018. 

 

Carers Services 

4.23 As agreed at Cabinet, the services for carers are in the process of being remodelled.  All 
contracts with the voluntary sector for these services have been extended to September 2019 to 
allow procurement processes to take place within the reduced budgets available, to deliver the 
required savings.  The reduction in the Carers Breaks Engagement Team has been achieved 
through voluntary redundancies and redeployment. 

5  Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

5.1  The savings proposals agreed by Cabinet on 26th June 2018 are proceeding in line with the 
decisions made by Cabinet, to deliver the required savings from the Adult Social Care budget in full 
in 2019/20. 

5.2   The Lead Member for Adult Social Care and Health is recommended to consider and 
comment on this report.  

 

KEITH HINKLEY 
Director of Adult Social Care and Health 

 

Contact Officer:  Kirstie Battrick, Staff Officer    

Telephone: 01273 482016 kirstie.battrick@eastsussex.gov.uk  

 

LOCAL MEMBERS 

This report impacts on all wards across the County. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 

Adult Social Care Proposals 2018/19, Cabinet, 26th June 2018 

Page 9

mailto:kirstie.battrick@eastsussex.gov.uk


 

 

  

Page 10


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Member on 24 May 2019
	4 Update on the progress of the 2018/19 Adult Social Care and Health savings

